City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPU-160

Questions & Answers
The following questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers shall be made part of the Request for Proposal.


	Question #
	Date Received
	Question
	City Response

	1
	9/11/08
	Approximately how many concurrent end users will need to access the system in all departments?


	SPU has 10 concurrent users in the existing Solid Waste Transfer Station Billing System. SPU will keep the 10 concurrently users in the new system, and like to know the financial and technical complication or change if we would add users in the future.



	2
	9/16/08
	FNC-220: Scale House Operators need to be able to view the account status field.  See DTA 600 for Account Status definition.
Please explain\clarify Account Status.
	Account Status is a description of the account.  The account can be open, closed, past due etc.

	3
	9/16/08
	FNC-810: Provide an audit trail (log) on all action taken on an account by a user. The audit record shows who performed the transaction on the TSB system.  The audit trail will show the user id, date, timestamp, commodity name, customer name and account number and the before and after affect of the transaction.   
Please explain\clarify 'the before and after part'...we think that we understand but want to clarify for all members of our team.
	The before and after effect of the transaction is the original transaction, the corrections or adjustments made to the transaction and then the final transaction.  We want to be able to see trail.

	4
	9/16/08
	FNC-840: Support blind cash counts to facilitate end-of-day balance checks.
What is a blind cash account?
	A blind cash count is that the computer system will keep track of the cash transactions and total them at the end of the day to show how much cash should be in the register.  At closing, the cashier will count all of the money in the register and the computer will compare what the cashier entered versus what the computer totaled.  The cashier will not be able to see the totals that the computer has and the closing process will report any amount out of balance.

	5
	9/16/08
	FNC-1030: System shall calculate month end processing for accounts receivable and accounts payable needs.
Please explain.
	First, there is no Accounts Payable need.  Accounts receivable needs are to close the charge transactions and invoice customer.  Also to close the cash transaction and make sure cash transaction balance to cash payments received. See addendum #1.

	6
	9/16/08
	FNC-1040: The System shall provide the function to customize period end processing by users
We need more detail...please explain
	We want the ability to choose what type of data we need from the system during the period closing process.

	7
	9/16/08
	FNC-1540: The System shall have the ability of one single ticket to be created for multiple trucks /trailers.
We think that we understand the requirement but please explain\clarify the requirement.
	Scenario would be a vehicle comes to the scale house and wants to pay for their load and the vehicle behind them.


	8
	9/16/08
	FNC-1700: System shall allow specific users to specify commodities.
Please explain\clarify
	We would like the ability to be able to add commodities. Specific scenario:  We may want specify loads of concrete as a new commodity with a different price from other waste in the future.

	9
	9/16/08
	FNC-1710: System shall allow specific users to specify units of measurement for each commodity including load number, weight (pounds or tons), length (feet), volume (as calculated from length, width, and height values), etc.
On what screen? Different from the value on the product table?
	Don't understand their question.  We are just asking that the system allow SPU to be able to specify a commodity and attributes for those commodities such as whether it would be treated in pounds, tons, units, etc.

	10
	9/16/08
	FNC-1910: Trucks and trailers shall be identified using a customizable set of attributes.
Please explain customizable attributes?
	We want to be able to add attributes to the truck table.  Specific scenario is one that happened already, where we need to know the max allowable weight under state law for this type of truck.  There maybe other attributes we think of in the future.

	11
	9/16/08
	DTA-400: The system shall provide an data extraction facility that the users can get ALL data out and load into an SPU internal Solid Waste Integration Data Mart.
Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	SPU IT staff and data users need to understand the new TSBS system and be able to get the data out via some tool.

	12
	9/16/08
	DTA-600: Tax Flag
Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	We want the ability to tax or not to tax customers individually, by account type or no tax to all customers.

	13
	9/16/08
	Commodity Type
Please explain and clarify this requirement.  It seems to our team that the City want to group products?
	Commodity Type is a roll-up of commodity codes.  For example a commodity type is garbage and under garbage the commodity codes are garbage cash, garbage credit, garbage car.



	14
	9/16/08
	Commodity Factor, Operand and Measure
Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	Field definition and code values are in data dictionary document that is on page 6 section 5.1.2. Of the RFP.

	15
	9/16/08
	Commodity Status
Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	We want the ability to describe whether a commodity is active, closed or inactive etc.  
A or blank = active  Ca Co T
I = Inactive   Ca Co T
C = Closed   Ca Co T
0 = New 
2 = Closed
4 = Paid 
6 = Voided 

	16
	9/16/08
	Waste Type Code
How would this differ from commodity type?  Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	We use waste type to be able to distinguish garbage coming from residences from garbage coming from businesses.  We need to track that garbage separately and one customer account could bring in either residential garbage or commercial garbage.

	17
	9/16/08
	Commodity Card Number
What is a commodity card number?  Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	In commodity charges, this is the value of card (badge, RFI tag) number used to initiate and complete a ticket. In the Card table it is a unique number attached to a vehicle. Multiple cards may be attached to a vehicle.

	18
	9/16/08
	Truck Status
Status?  Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	We want the ability to make a vehicle active, inactive or closed for each account.  Another process may be presented.

	19
	9/16/08
	Gross Vehicle Weight (empty truck weight, currently in a user field)
We are confused by Gross Weight and empty truck weight since empty truck weight is the tare.  Please explain and clarify this requirement.
	To be answered.

	20
	9/16/08
	REP-1100: System will generate a ticket summary list formatted by the user.
What do you mean formatted by user?  Please explain and clarify.
	The user wants to have the ability to determine what fields and what type of transactions to be included in the reports.

	21
	9/16/08
	REP-1500: System will produce a Sales Journal report for audit functions including a report of the activity for the current period, customer beginning balance, and new customer balances.
Can you provide a sample of this existing report so that we can compare against our reports that comes with the system?
	
[image: image1.emf]Sales Journal report  example.pdf



	22
	9/16/08
	REP-2600: Outbound load control log report.
Can you provide a sample of this existing report so that we can compare against our reports that comes with the system?
	We do not have existing report.

	23
	9/16/08
	70 hours of training required seems to be above and beyond the typical end user training that we normally conducted.  Can you explain the need, constraints, challenges, issues and/or etc. for the request for 70 hours?  It isn’t an issue with us to provide 70 hours of training, we are just looking out to save the City money where necessary
	SPU has 4 user groups, see background section in RFP. Each group will require different type of training. There also staff work in different shifts, some training need be given more than once.

	24
	9/17/08
	Can you provide a sample of the current  ticket printout 
	
[image: image2.emf]TSBS Ticket from  station - example.pdf

    
[image: image3.emf]TSBS Ticket Invoice  from Finance group - example.pdf




	25
	9/17/08
	Can you provide a sample of the current invoice and statement
	
[image: image4.emf]TSBS Invoice  example.pdf



	26
	9/17/08
	Can you provide a sample of currently used reports with minimum report requirements. A reporting tool is great but need minimum report specifications so we can plan to meet go live requirements
	To be answered.

	27
	9/17/08
	Bar code scanner - what is scanned? Is the code 3 of 9? How many cards have been issued?
	To be answered.

	28
	9/17/08
	Metavante - Is there a contact person that is familiar with the city implementation? Do they support PC charge by VeriFone?
	Remove Metavente integration as mandatory technical requirement from RFP, replace it with INT-310 which is preferred than mandatory. See addendum #1.

For question of how to implement Metavente, please contact Metavente at 1-800-236-3282.

	29
	9/17/08
	The RFP asks that all meeting be onsite. Will they except the option of onsite meetings as well as web conference meetings for project management and training to reduce costs? If award is issued on 12/18/08. Should we plan for at least 12 ( 1 a week at minimum) weeks of project management meetings?
	Web or audio conference is OK for weekly project meeting. If the vendor is sure that they can complete the scope of work in 12 weeks, yes, at least 12 weekly meetings.

SPU likes to have on-site training, no web training. 



	30
	9/17/08
	Can a sample data file from the TSBS data be  exported and provided for a data review in a CSV file before the bid? 
	To be answered.

	31
	9/17/08
	Is a sample of the final contract provided for review prior to bid?
	Yes. In RFP attachment #2.



	32
	9/17/08
	Project management and contract implementation can vary from city to city which can make a big difference in the final cost. Is there 1 project manager assigned from the city? Is the project manager a contractor or a city employee? From the city's experience, how many hours are usually spent in the contact drafting for a software purchase? Do we use the vendor supplied contract or is it a city contract? How many hours is the city anticipating for project management from their side?
	There is one project manager, a City employee, assigned to this project. We'd like the vendor provide a project manager on the vendor side to manage the vendor's resource, scope, work schedule, deliverables, meetings, issues, and change requests. The vendor PM and City PM will handle the communications and coordinate between the two parties, such as coordinate data conversion, on-site testing, training, installation. The City PM is anticipating 12 hours/week on this project. This includes not only managing the software purchasing contract, but also SPU internal data warehouse change.

	33
	9/17/08
	From the time the bill is submitted by vendor, how long does it take to review, approve and pay? ( 30 days?) Can bills be submitted as product shipped but before completion?
	Contract bill cannot be paid before the work is completed and signed off by the authorized parties. Progress payment is allowed upon work completion and customer satisfactory.  Once the City has received and approved the invoice, the City will provide payment within thirty (30) days. See Contract term in attachment #2 of the RFP.

	34
	9/17/08
	Will the contract allow for progress payments and payments when milestones are completed?
	Yes. Progress payment is allowed upon work completion and customer satisfactory.



	35
	9/17/08
	I am assuming that there will be a software review meeting that will need an onsite software review and demonstration during 11/13-14. Will there be a evaluation meeting during 10/20 -10/31 and then another on 11/13-14?
	Yes, the final evaluations will be conducted after the demonstrations.

	36
	9/17/08
	Will the questions and answers be posted for all vendors?
	Yes.

	37
	9/17/08
	RFid - Is there a specific requirement or just that it will support? Example - Tags on trucks reading 10 to 15 feet or tags reading a few inches? Are we supplying the tags?
	Currently we do not have RFID in the trucks. The vendor will supply the tags for collection trucks. Please specify unit tag price. The number of trucks in the current system is approximately 180.

	38
	9/17/08
	Are the traffic lights installed? Is there a wiring diagram. Who will interface (wire) with the lights?
	Yes, traffic lights are installed 20 years ago, no wiring diagram. Light controller is old and should be replaced. Connection to the TSBS is via a ribbon cable and proprietary card in the TSBS server. The new TSBS vendor will work with SPU electric engineer to wire the lights.

	39
	9/17/08
	What is the make and model of the gates? Who will interface (wire) to the gates?
	Currently there is no gate. We require the capability to interface with gates

	40
	9/17/08
	License plate reader? Could you explain? Do you mean a video camera that take a picture of the license plate? What is the difference between int-130 and int-240 on your RFP?
	With regards to INT-130, We want the ability to have a device that can read the license plates of the incoming vehicles and interact with the POS system at the scale house to input that license plate number into the transaction, this will eliminate the manual entry of the license plate number by the cashiers.  

With regards to INT-240, we currently video tape all transactions at the scale house.  We want that video to be tied to the transaction by having the transaction data overlaid into the video.  For example, we would like the video to be date and time stamped as well as include the transaction number.  We also want the ability to search the video by date, time of the transaction or by transaction number so that we can quickly reference a particular transaction if needed. 

	41
	9/17/08
	Unattended? Do you currently have or want to implement an unattended solution?
	Currently don't have unattended, want the capability for future.

Unattended is for the commercial haulers coming through inbound using RFID, for self-hauler, we need the capability of unattended automated payment key system on outbound in the future.

	42
	9/17/08
	Explain the interface to your video and alarm solution? What is the make and model? 
	Currently the video system is Verint/Nextiva V 4.5. The video system is planned to be upgraded to version 5.x/6.x within the next 12 months. Minimal concept would be to insert a video text overlay device. Optimal would be to utilize Verint/Nextiva SDK to allow video to be viewed from SRDS system triggered on time.

	43
	9/17/08
	You say under section 3 that you require full integration to Metavante but in int-310 you say you prefer. Can you explain?
	Removed Metavante as mandatory technical requirement from RFP, replace it with INT-310 which is preferred than mandatory.

See addendum #1

	44
	9/17/08
	Are we supplying PC's and hardware or the specifications? Does the city have a preferred hardware vendor list?
	SPU's current PC vendor is HP. The current standard desktop is HP dc7800 Business Desktop Small Form Factor, Core 2 Duo E6750, 2GB, 160GB SATA, DVD burner, Dual monitor support. The standard desktop would be preferred unless it does not meet the needs of the system. If other hardware to be used SPU must approve.

	45
	9/23/08
	Debit card reader– Please review – I believe this needs to come from credit card processor and not from 3rd party
	Change the requirement to Credit card only, no debit card. See addendum #1.


	46
	9/23/08
	Can a site visit be available on a Wednesday or Thursday in the next 2 to 3 weeks?
	A site visit is schedule, see addendum #1.

	47
	9/23/08
	Can you explain what CTEP is and why that is included when NTEP is the national standard?
	CTEP is removed from the requirement. 
See addendum #1.

	48
	9/23/08
	Will you consider hardware supplied in an “a la cart” format so you can pick and choose what you want. An example of the reason is you mention gates in the RFP but you do not now use gates. The same with an unmanned solution.
	Yes, Please list the required & preferred hardware in detail of the financial response, include model, quantity, manufacture warranty, etc. See addendum #1 for updated financial response.

	49
	9/23/08
	Can I also have the statue for the State of Washington or city that requires a bidder to supply private company financials. Having them reviewed during the award process is one thing but making part of public record is a very different thing. We have done this before with the City of Nashua but it did not ever become part of public record.  You offer the ability to separate the financials but to not protect it from public record. I would like to have my legal counsel review the law in case it does get requested and the cost to protect or private documents.
	See Section 6 “Proprietary Proposal Material” on page 16
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